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The name Rocky Mountain House conjures
up visions of the great days of the fur
trade, of explorers, Indian hunters, and the
rivalry between the Hudson’'s Bay Company
and the North West Companyv. For most of
this century the only remains of those days
have been two reconstructed stone chim-
neys. The story of Rocky Mountain House,
now a National Historic Park, is illustrated
in an interpretation trailer at the site.

In many ways Rocky Mountain House
was an anomaly: it was founded to trade
with a tribe of Indians who never appeared
in significant numbers at the post; it was
intended as a base for exploration across
the mountains, yet when a practical route
was found it lay elsewhere; it was perpet-
ually condemned as uneconomical, but all
attempts to close it down failed. Never an
outstandingly successful post, it remained
in operation for over 75 years (with inter-
ruptions), not because the traders wanted
it, because the Indians demanded it.

Most of the initial exploration of Canada
was done by fur traders, men motivated
not so much by the desire to expand geo-
graphical knowledge as by the search for
newer and richer fur country and shorter
and better transportation routes. The pro-
cess began with Cartier’s landings in the
Gulf of St. Lawrence in 1534, but it reached
its climax in the closing years of the 18th
century, during the competition between
the two trading giants, the Hudson’s Bay
Company and the North West Company.
Traders then pushed westward, not only to
find new markets, but to find them ahead
of the competition. Each year the advance
posts were further west, until by the mid
1790’s they had reached the vicinity of what
is now Edmonton. By this time the Nor’-
Westers were so far from their Montreal
headquarters that their supply lines were in
danger of being over-extended, and they
began looking for a link with the Pacific
to simplify the logistics problem. These
were the conditions which led to the
founding of the first Rocky Mountain House.



In the summer of 1799 two parties left
Forts Augustus and Edmonton (the com-
peting posts near the present site of Ed-
monton), travelling west to the junction of
the Saskatchewan and Clearwater rivers.
The Nor'Westers were planning a post
which would draw the Kutenai (Kootenay)
Indians across the mountains to trade,
and also serve as a base for the search
for a practical route across the Rockies to
the Pacific; the Hudson's Bay men were
forced to go along to keep an eye on the
competition. The resultant posts were
named Rocky Mountain House (N.W.Co.)
and Acton House (H.B.Co.)

The fate of the two houses was, ultimate-
ly, determined by the fact that they lay near
the territory of the Blackfoct Confederacy.
The Blackfoot trade was never particularly
lucrative, but they were a powerful people,
and their good will was imperative to the
traders. Almost as soon as the two posts
at the Clearwater were open, members of
the Confederacy, particularly the Peigan,
appropriated them as their own. This meant.
among other things, that the Kutenais, en-
emies of the Blackfoot, would not come in
to trade, so the main reason for building
Rocky Mountain House was doomed from
the start. In fact, so unprofitable did both
posts prove that they were both closed
in 1802.

The Nor'Westers had still not abandoned
the hope of finding a practical route to the
Pacific, and in 1806-07 Rocky Mountain
House was reopened as a base for the ex-
plorations of the great geographer David
Thompson. Although Thompson eventually
found his way from Rocky Mountain House
to the headwaters of the Columbia, the
route was a difficult one, and was soon
abandoned in favour of an easier one via
the upper Athabasca and Yellowhead Pass.
Once more Rocky Mountain House had
failed to serve its intended function, and
it was closed after a single season.

The history of Rocky Mountain House
(and Acton House, for the H.B.Co. were




forced to keep abreast of their rivals) would
probably have ended at this point had it not
been for the Peigans. Lacking a post in
their own territory, they had started coming
into Fort Augustus and Fort Edmonton to
trade; but these posts were used by the
Cree, and the presence of the Peigans
(Blackfoot) meant trouble. To prevent con-
flict, therefore, Rocky Mountain House and
Acton House were reopened in 1810. Three
seasons later they were again abandoned,
only to be re-established for the same rea-
sons in 1818. In 1821 the North West and
Hudson's Bay Companies united, and the
new company occupied the Nor'Westers'
Rocky Mountain House, which was appar-
ently the more substantial of the two posts.
Still another attempt was made to close
Rocky Mountain House in 1823, but the
movement of American traders into Black-
foot country forced the Hudson's Bay Com-
pany to reopen the post again in 1827. In
1832 the Bay tried to replace Rocky Moun-
tain House with Peigan Post on the Bow
River just east of the Rockies, but the new
house proved even less productive than
Rocky Mountain House. By 1834 the traders
were back at Rocky Mountain House, which
had become so dilapidated that they were
forced to rebuild it completely, near the
original site. The new house was kept open
each trading season until 1861, the longest
period of continuous operation in its history.
Up to this point Rocky Mountain House
had existed because the Blackfoot de-
manded it, but by the early 1860's they were
becoming increasingly hostile, and the
meagre returns of the post did not justify
the risks involved in maintaining it. In 1861
Rocky Mountain House was abandoned
once more. By 1864 it was felt that the
Indians were sufficiently chastened to war-
rant reopening the post, which was again
in a state of advanced dilapidation. The ne-
cessary rebuilding did not begin, however,
until 1866, when a new site was chosen
about 3/s miles downstream from the old one.
This is the post whose chimneys survive.

The late 1860's were the declining years
for the Blackfoot as they were for other
Plains tribes. By the end of the decade the
Hudson’s Bay Company had transferred its
great land holdings to the Dominion of
Canada, and in the '70’s the reservation
system was introduced. Under these con-
ditions the Bay decided in 1875 to close
Rocky Mountain House for good. Within two
years the Blackfoot were on their reserva-
tions, and unable to force the reopening
of the post as they had in the past. Ten
years later the fort was in ruins, and today
nothing remains but the two reconstructed
chimneys, a final tangible link with a fur
trading post extending back to the closing
years of the 1700’s.
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